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Dear Unitholder,

We would like to share with you the performance of Alpha Saudi
Equity Fund (the “ for the financial year ending 31st December
2021.

During 2021, the market demonstrated strong resilience and sharp
turnaround recovery from the pandemic, Alpha Capital's Saudi
Equity Fund displayed solid performance and managed to
consistently outperform the benchmark this year and since its
inception. The Fund posted a return of 39.8% during the physical
year 2021 and remained within the top quartile compared to its
peer group performance.

We would like to take this opportunity and thank you for choosing
Alpha Capital as your investment partner, and we remain
committed to realizing your investment objectives with us.

To this end, it is our pleasure to attach to you the Fund’'s annual
report, which details the performance of the Fund for the financial
year ending on 315t December 2021.

Finally, please do not hesitate to contact us if you have any
questions regarding the contents disclosed within the attached
Report.

Fund Manager

Alpha Capital
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Investments Details
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Fund Name

Investment
Objectives &
Policies

Distribution of
Income and
Gain Policy

Fund Benchmark
and service
provider’s website

Fund Performance

Alpha Saudi Equity Fund (“ASEF")

To provide medium & long-term capital growth by investing in listed

equities in the Saudi Market. The fund invests its assets in a

diversified portfolio of shariah compliant companies listed in the

Saudi Equity market. The fund may also invest a part of its assets

in short term Murabaha investments.

The fund will not make any distributions to unit holders. Instead,

dividends will be reinvested.

S&P Shariah Domestic Saudi Arabia

https://www.spglobal.com/

Net Asset value and Distributions, SAR

Description

Fund Net Asset Value (“NAV”)

at the end of the financial year

NAV per unit at the end of the
financial year

Highest NAV per unit for the

December 2019 December 2020

37,321,725.09 20,271,403.80

financial year

Lowest NAV per unit for the

11.86750 13.95788
11.86750 13.95788
9.67919 9.32565

financial year

No. of Units at the end of

3,144,867.9630 1,452,327.2737

financial year

Income Distribution per unit - NA NA
Gross
Income Distribution per unit - NA NA
Net
o
Total Expense Ratio % - Avg 506 3.06

AUM

Parentage of borrows assts
from total asset value with NA NA
period and due date

1: As of last official valuation on 29t December 2021

December 2021(1)
43,339,325.71

19.51237

20.78362

13.42071
2,221,120.7802
NA
NA

2.41

NA
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Fund Performance

Investment Fund'’s “ "
YTD”) by 9.38%.
Performance ( ) by g

The fund’s performance since YTD stood at 39.79% v/s 30.42% for

the benchmark. The fund outperformed its benchmark Year to Date

During the Period The fund’s performance since inception stood at 95.12% v/s 42.72%

inception by 52.40%.
Performance Record

for the benchmark. The fund outperformed its benchmark since

Description 1 Year 3 Years

Total Return (%) 39.79 101.03
Description 2018 2019
Annual Total

Return (%) @ (2.94) 22.27

Fund Fees & Expenses for 2021
Administration fee expense
Audit fee
Management fee
Custodian fee
Shariah advisory fee
Regulatory & exchange fee
Other Expenses

Total

Description
Total Expense Ratio % - Avg AUM

1: The fund was incepted in July 2018. Accordingly, total return metric for 5 years are not applicable.

5Years™ Since inception

NA 95.12

2020 2021
18.14 Sl )

SAR

128,666.10

57,917.49

594,624.61

10,471.22

13,923.29

13,177.40

50,650.94

869,431.05

%
2.41

2: The fund was incepted in July 2018. Accordingly, annual return data for a portion of 2018, and for the full subsequent periods are presented.

3: The Fund Fees and Expenses as of last official valuation on 29t Dec 2021
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Performance Record

Disclosure

Basis of

performance
calculation &
assumptions

Material changes
affecting fund
performance

Total Expense ratio is calculated based on average AUM over the
period and there was no fee rebate paid to the clients. However, the

subscription fee was waived for all the subscriptions during the year.

The Performance data is calculated on NAV/unit basis on each

valuation day.

There is no material changes affecting fund performance during the
reporting period.
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Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
Approve Reject Abstain

Voting on the report of the Board of Directors for the fiscal year
ending on 08/31/2020
Voting on the company's auditor's report for the fiscal year ending
on 08/31/2020.
Voting on the financial statements for the fiscal year ending on
08/31/2020
Voting on the appointment of the company's auditor from among
the candidates on the recommendation of the Audit Committee;
This is to examine, review and audit the financial statements for
the third quarter of the fiscal year 2020/2021, the fiscal year that
will end on 08/31/2021, and the first and second quarters of the
2021/22 fiscal year, and to determine its fees.
Voting on the Board of Directors’ recommendation to distribute
cash dividends to shareholders for the fiscal year ending on
08/31/2020 AD with a total amount of (34,400,000) riyals at
(0.80) riyals per share, equivalent to 8% of the company’s capital,
provided that the eligibility is Shareholders who own shares at the
end of trading on the day of the assembly meeting and who are
registered in the company’s shareholders register with the
Depository Center Company at the end of the second trading day
following the due date, and the dividend distribution date will be
announced later.
To vote on electing members of the board of directors from
among the candidates for the next session, which starts from the
date of 28/02/2021 and for a period of three years ending on
27/02/2024, noting that if the results of the vote are not The
company enables the appointment of a minimum number of X
independent members of the board as per the regulatory
requirements, the non-independent members will be replaced by
independent members according to the number of votes they will
get.
Voting on the formation of the Audit Committee, determining its
tasks, working controls, and remunerations for its members for
the new session, starting from the date of February 28, 2021 AD
until the end of the session on the date of February 27, 2024 AD, X
noting that the candidates are: - 1- Muhammad bin Farhan Bin
Nader 2 - Khalid bin Saad Al-Sabti 3- Abdulaziz bin Muhammad
Al-Suwailem
Vote to absolve the members of the Board of Directors from
liability for the fiscal year ending on 08/31/2020.
Voting on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim
dividends in a semi-quarterly/quarterly manner for the fiscal year X
08/31/2021 AD.
Voting on delegating the Board of Directors the authority of the
Ordinary General Assembly with the authorization contained in
Paragraph (1) of Article 71 of the Companies Law, until the end of
the current Board of Directors session on February 27, 2021 AD, X
in accordance with the conditions contained in the regulations
and regulatory procedures issued in implementation The
Companies Law of Listed Shareholding Companies.
Voting on delegating the Board of Directors (elected for the next
session) with the authority of the Ordinary General Assembly with
the authorization contained in Paragraph (1) of Article 71 of the
Companies Law, for a period of one year from the date of
approval by the Ordinary General Assembly or until the end of the
Board of Directors’ session (elected for the next session) )
Whichever is earlier, in accordance with the conditions set forth in
the regulatory controls and procedures issued in implementation
of the Companies Law for Listed Joint Stock Companies.

X

Other

KPMG
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Saudi Electricity AGM

Subject of the Vote

Voting on formation of Audit Committee, determining its functions,
work controls, and the remunerations of its members for the new
session, at the date 21/01/2021 to the end of the session on
20/01/2024, noting that the candidates as follows:1. Walid Ibrahim
Shukri 2. Isam Alwan Albayyat. 3. Suliman Abdulaziz Altwaijri. 4.
Khalid Salem Alrwais.

Voting on the business and contracts between the company and the
National Commercial Bank, in which the board member, Mr. Rashid
Ibrahim Sharif, has an indirect interest, which is a 7-year mutual
Murabaha financing agreement, in the context of the ordinary
business and has not given any preferential benefits, worth 3 billion
Riyals .

Voting on the business and contracts between the company and Gulf
International Bank, in which the board member Dr. Najm Abdullah Al
Zaid has an indirect interest, which is a one-year financial facilitation
facility agreement, in the context of the ordinary business and has not
given any preferential benefits, worth 500 million Riyals.

Advanced EGM

To vote on the Board of Directors Report for the year ended 31-12-
2020.

To vote on the Company consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31-12-2020.

To vote on the external auditor report for the year ended 31-12-2020.
To vote on appointing an auditor for the company among those
nominees based on the recommendation of the Audit committee to
review and audit the first, second, third, annual financial statements of
fiscal year 2021 and first quarter of 2022, and determine their
remuneration.

To vote on the recommendation of the Board of Directors of
distribution of cash dividend to shareholders for the fourth quarter of
2020 by Saudi Riyals 140.7 million representing 6.5% of the share
capital and the dividend per share will be (SAR 0.65). The eligibility for
the dividend shall be for the shareholders owning shares at the end of
trading day on the day of 9th Extraordinary General Assembly
Meeting and registered in the register of the Securities Depository
Center at the end of the 2nd trading day following the eligibility date,
the distribution date will be announced later.

To vote on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim
cash dividends to the shareholders on biannual or quarterly basis for
the financial year 2021.

To vote on Discharge of the members of the Board of Directors for the
year ended 31-12-2020.

To vote on delegating the board of directors the vested powers of the
general assembly meeting as per article (71) of the Companies Law
for one year from the date of the approval by the general assembly
meeting or the end of the delegated Board of Directors' term, which
comes first. Such delegation shall be in accordance with the
requirements stipulated in the Regulatory Rules and Procedures
issued pursuant to the Companies Law relating to Listed Joint Stock
Companies.

To vote on the recommendation of the Board of Directors to
discontinue setting aside (10%) of the net profits to the statutory
reserve, as it has reached (30%) percent of the Company’s capital.
To vote on the recommendation of the Board of Directors to set aside
(10%) of the net profits to the consensual reserve if item number (9) is
approved.

To vote on the amendment of article (2) of the Company's By-Laws
concerning the Company Name.

To vote on the amendment of article (3) of the Company's By-Laws
concerning the Company Purposes.

To vote on the amendment of article (4) of the Company's By-Laws
concerning the Participation in and Ownership of Companies.

Approve

Alpha Capital’s Vote

Reject

Abstain

Other

EY
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Advanced EGM

Subject of the Vote

To vote on the amendment of article (22) of the Company's By-Laws
concerning the Board Meetings.

To vote on the amendment of article (30) of the Company's By-Laws
concerning the Invitation for the General Assemblies.

To vote on the amendment of article (42) of the Company's By-Laws
concerning the Appointing an Auditor.

To vote on the Social Responsibility Policy.

BJAZ AGM

To vote on the Board of Directors Annual Report for the fiscal year
ending 31 December 2020.

To vote on the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 December
2020.

To vote on the External Auditor’s Report for the year ending 31
December 2020.

To vote on releasing the Board of Directors members from their
liability for the fiscal year ending 31 December 2020.

To vote on appointing the Bank’s External Auditors among the
candidates based on the Audit Committee recommendation as to
examine, review and audit the financial statements for the first,
second and third quarter along with 2021 year end financials and
determining their fees.

Voting on the Board of Directors Resolution appointing Mr. Naif
AlAbdulkareem (an Executive Director) in the Board of Directors, to
the vacant seat effective from 21 January 2021 to the end of the
current Board tenor on 31 December 2021, in replacement of the
previous member Mr. Nabil Bin Dawood Al Hoshan (an Executive
Director).

To Vote on the businesses and contracts that will take place between
the Bank and AlJazirah Cooperative Takaful Company which is
considered a Related Party as Eng. Abdulmajeed Al-Sultan, a BAJ
board director, has an indirect interest in it being a board director
member of AlJazirah Cooperative Takaful Company. These contracts
are the collective insurance agreement for the personal finance
portfolio, the collective insurance agreement for the real estate
finance portfolio, the collective insurance services agreement for the
bank’s employees, the loan portfolio protection services agreement
for the bank’s employees and their licensing for the next year. These
transactions in 2020 amounted to SAR 168.3 Million and were done
without any preferential treatment.

To Vote on the businesses and contracts that will take place between
the Bank and AlJazira Capital Company which is considered a
Related Party as Mr. Naif Al-abdulkareem, a BAJ board director, has
an indirect interest in it being a board director member of Al-Jazirah
Capital Company. These agreements are mutual services, Tammam
product sharing agreement, a special commission expense
agreement on time deposits, and branch lease expense agreement
and their licensing for the next year. These transactions in 2020
amounted to SAR 17.6 Million and were done without any preferential
treatment.

Tawuniya AGM

Voting on the Board Annual Report for the fiscal year ended on 31
December 2020.

Voting on the Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended on 31
December 2020.
Voting on External Auditors Report for the fiscal year ended on 31
December 2020.

Alpha Capital’s Vote

Approve Reject Abstain

X

X

X

X

X

X
X
X
X
X
X

X

X

X

Other
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Tawuniya AGM

Subject of the Vote
Approve
4 Voting on releasing liability of Board members for the year ended on
31 December 2020.
Voting on the appointment of External Auditors among the nominated
based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee to review and
5 audit the financial statements of the second &amp; third quarter and X
annual statements for the year 2021 and first quarter of 2022, and
determination of their fees.
Voting on payment of total SAR (5,162,500) as remuneration to the
6 members of the Board of Directors for the fiscal year ended on 31
December 2020.
7 Voting on the amended Corporate Governance Policy.

8 Voting on the amended Audit Committee Charter.
Voting on the Board of Directors recommendation to distribute cash
dividends to shareholders for the fiscal year ended on December 31,
2020 with total amount SAR (100) Million, estimated at (0.8 Riyal) per
share, representing (8%) of the face value of share. The eligibility of
dividends shall be for the company’s shareholders who own shares at
the end of trading day in which the General Assembly meeting is
convened and registered in the company’s Share Registry at
Securities Depository Center (Edaa) at the end of the second trading
day following the due date for dividends distribution will start
09/05/2021.
Voting on delegating the Board of Directors the vested powers of the
general assembly meeting as per article (71/1) of the Companies Law
for one year from the date of the Assembly approval or the end of the
10 delegated Board term, which comes first. Such delegation shall be in X
accordance with the requirements stipulated in the Regulatory Rules
and Procedures issued pursuant to the Companies Law relating to
Listed Joint Stock Companies.
Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Public
pension agency which Board member Mr. Jasser Aljasser has an
11 indirect interest. The business related to insurance policies. Note that
transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2020 amounted to
24,744,275 SAR without any preferential treatment.
Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
Tawuniya Real Estate Investment Company which Board members
Mr. Ghassan Almalki and Mr. Jasser Aljasser have an indirect
interest. The business related to insurance policies. Note that
transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2020 amounted to
596,667 SAR without any preferential treatment.
Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
Tawuniya Real Estate Investment Company which Board members
Mr. Ghassan Almalki and Mr. Jasser Aljasser have an indirect
interest. The business related to Rental Contract. Note that
transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2020 amounted to
763,077 SAR without any preferential treatment .
Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Saudi
Investment Bank which Board member Mr. Abdulaziz Alkhamis has an
14 indirect interest. The business related to insurance. Note that
transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2020 amounted to
26,554,344 SAR without any preferential treatment.
Voting on the business relationship between the Company and United
Insurance Company which Board members Mr. Waleed Aleissa, Mr.
Abdulaziz Alkhamis, Mr. Jasser Aljasser &amp; CEO Mr. Abdulaziz
Alboug have an indirect interest. The business related to insurance
policies. Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of
2020 amounted to 1,006,504 SAR without any preferential treatment.
Voting on the business relationship between the Company and United
Insurance Company which Board members Mr. Waleed Aleissa, Mr.
Abdulaziz Alkhamis, Mr. Jasser Aljasser &amp; CEO Mr. Abdulaziz
Alboug have an indirect interest. The business related to insurance
claims. Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of
2020 amounted to 6,290,528 SAR without any preferential treatment.

Alpha Capital’s Vote

Reject Abstain Other

X
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Tawuniya AGM

: Alpha Capital's Vote
SUSEE e Vel Approve Reject Abstain Other
Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
National Consulting House Company which Board Chairman Mr.
17 Abdulaziz Alnowaiser has an indirect interest. The business related to X
insurance policies. Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth
quarter of 2020 amounted to 140,124 SAR without any preferential
treatment.
Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Saudi
Entertainment Ventures Company which Board Chairman Mr.
18 Abdulaziz Alnowaiser has an indirect interest. The business related to X
insurance policies Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth
quarter of 2020 amounted to 432,185 SAR without any preferential
treatment.
Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
Tahakom Group which Board Chairman Mr. Abdulaziz Alnowaiser has
19 anindirect interest. The business related to insurance policies. Note X
that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2020
amounted to 165,597,682 SAR without any preferential treatment.
Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Al
Essa Trading Company which Board Chairman Mr. Abdulaziz
20 Alnowaiser has an indirect interest. The business related to insurance X
policies. Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of
2020 amounted to 273,484 SAR without any preferential treatment.
Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Umm
Algura Cement Company which Board Chairman Mr. Abdulaziz
21 Alnowaiser has an indirect interest. The business related to insurance X
policies. Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of
2020 amounted to 759,028 SAR without any preferential treatment .
022-Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
Saudi Railways Company which Board Chairman Mr. Abdulaziz
22 Alnowaiser has an indirect interest. The business related to insurance X
policies. Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of
2020 amounted to 2,388,480 SAR without any preferential treatment.
Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
Flyadeal which Board Chairman Mr. Abdulaziz Alnowaiser has an
23 indirect interest. The business related to insurance policies. Note that X
transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2020 amounted to
5,5656,277.87 SAR without any preferential treatment.
Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
General Organization for Social Insurance which Board member Mr.
o4 Ghassan Almalki has an indirect interest. The business related to X
insurance policies . Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth
quarter of 2020 amounted to 33,140,863 SAR without any
preferential treatment.
Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
General Organization for Social Insurance which Board member Mr.
Ghassan Almalki has an indirect interest. The business related to

&9 Service Agreement. Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth x
quarter of 2020 amounted to 134,370 SAR without any preferential
treatment.
Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Jabal

%6 Omar Development Company which Board member Mr. Waleed «

Aleissa has an indirect interest. The business related to insurance
policies. Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of
2020 amounted to 5,098,631 SAR without any preferential treatment.
Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Raza
Company which Board member Mr. Waleed Aleissa has an indirect
27 interest. The business related to insurance policies. Note that X

transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2020 amounted to

5,021,106 SAR without any preferential treatment.

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Raza

Company which Board member Mr. Waleed Aleissa has an indirect
28 interest. The business related to a Rental Contract. Note that X
transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2020 amounted to
125,014 SAR without any preferential treatment.
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: Alpha Capital's Vote
SUSEE e Vel Approve Reject Abstain
Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Saudi
Stock Exchange (Tadawul) which Board member Mr. Abdulrahman
29 Alodan has an indirect interest. The business related to insurance X
policies. Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of
2020 amounted to 17,170,107.09 SAR without any preferential
treatment .
Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Saudi
Stock Exchange (Tadawul) which Board member Mr. Abdulrahman
30 Alodan has an indirect interest. The business related to a Service X
Agreement. Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter
of 2020 amounted to 1,049,722.29 SAR without any preferential
treatment
Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
Waseel Company which CEO Mr. Abdulaziz Alboug has an indirect
31 interest. The business related to insurance policies. Note that X
transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2020 amounted to
742,066 SAR without any preferential treatment
Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
Waseel Company which CEO Mr. Abdulaziz Alboug has an indirect
32 interest. The business related to Service Agreement. Note that X
transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2020 amounted to
3,982,931 SAR without any preferential treatment

Tasnee AGM
1 Voting on the Board of Directors’ report for the fiscal year ending on X
31 December 2020.
5 Voting on the auditor’s report for the fiscal year ending on 31 N
December 2020.
3 Voting on the Company’s financial statements for the fiscal year «

ending on 31 December 2020
Voting on the appointment of the auditor, based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee; to examine, review and

4 audit the financial statements for the second and third quarters as
well as the annual statements for the fiscal year 2021 and for the first
quarter of the year 2022, and to determine the auditor’s fees
Voting on the business transactions and contracts that took place
between the National Industrialization Petrochemicals Marketing Co.
(A TASNEE subsidiary Company) and the Converting Industries
Company Ltd. (an affiliate of Al-Shaer Trading, Industry and

5 Contracting Company) in which the Board Member Dr. Talal Ali Al- X
Shair has a direct interest. The transactions include various purchase
orders for polyethylene materials. The total purchase during the fiscal
year ending on 31 December 2020 amounted to SAR 10,958,781.
There were no favorable terms.
Voting on the business and contracts that took place between the
National Industrialization Petrochemicals Marketing Co. (A TASNEE
subsidiary company) and the Factory of Non-Woven Industrial Fabrics
Company, which is a subsidiary of Al-Khafrah Holding Company in

6  which the Chairman of the Board Eng. Mubarak Abdullah Al-Khafrah X
has a direct interest in. The transactions include various purchase
orders for polypropylene materials. The total purchase during the
fiscal year ending on 31 December 2020 amounted to SAR
4,347,099. There were no favorable terms.
Voting on disbursement of an amount of SAR 350,000 as an award

7 for each Board member for the fiscal year ending on 31 December X
2020
8 Voting on the Board members' release from liability for the fiscal year .
ending on 31 December 2020.
Extra EGM
1 Voting on the Board Report for the fiscal year ending 31 December
2020. X
5 Voting on the Auditors Report for the fiscal year ending 31 December
2020 X
3 003-Voting on the Financial Statements for the fiscal year ending 31 X

December 2020

Other

PWC 450,000
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Extra EGM

: Alpha Capital’s Vote
SUSEIE e Vel Approve Reject Abstain
Voting on release Board of Directors members from liability for the
fiscal year ending 31 December 2020.

Voting on the Board of Directors resolution regarding the distributed
profits of the company for the first half and second half of 2020, 3
Saudi riyals per share, 30% of the company's capital, with a total
amount of (180,000,000) Saudi riyals.

Voting on appointing the External Auditor for the Company from
among the candidates based on the Audit Committee
recommendation, The appointed auditor shall examine, review and
audit the second, third and quarter and annual financial statements, of
the fiscal year 2021, and the first quarter of the fiscal year 2022, and
the determination of the auditor remuneration.

Voting on delegating the Board of Directors to distribute interim
dividends on a semi-annual or quarterly basis to shareholders for the
fiscal year 2021 and to determine the due date and payment date in
accordance with the Regulatory Rules and Procedures issued
pursuant to Companies Law, in line with the company's financial
position, cash flows, expansion and investment plans

Voting on the amendment of Article 19 of the Company’s bylaws
relating to Chairman, Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Board X
Secretary.

Voting on the business and contracts that will be concluded between

the company and Abdul latif &amp; Mohamed AlFozan Company, in

which Mr. Abdullah AlFozan and Mr. Fozan AlFozan has an indirect

interest in it, which is a warehouse lease, the contract amount is

480,000 SR annually, these transactions are based on commercial

bases, and there are no special conditions associated with them.

Voting on the business and contracts that will be concluded between

the company and Abdul latif &amp; Mohamed AlFozan Company, in

which Mr. Abdullah AlFozan and Mr. Fozan AlFozan has an indirect

interest in it, which is a Land lease, the contract amount is 991,000

SR annually, these transactions are based on commercial bases, and

there are no special conditions associated with them.

Voting on the business and contracts that will be concluded between
the company and Madar Building Materials Company, in which Mr.
Abdullah AlFozan and Mr. Fozan AlFozan has an indirect interest in it,
which is a warehouse lease, the contract amount is 550,000 SR
annually in addition to the warehouse maintenance expenses of
386,284 SR paid to Madar Building Materials Company during 2020,
these transactions are based on commercial bases, and there are no
special conditions associated with them.

Voting on the business and contracts that will be concluded between

the company and United Home Appliances Company, in which Mr.

Abdullah AlFozan and Mr. Fozan AlFozan has an indirect interest in it,

which is a lease contract for a sales space at the Extra showroom, the X
contract amount is 1,566,080 SR annually, these transactions are

based on commercial bases, and there are no special conditions

associated with them.

Voting on the business and contracts that concluded between the

company and United Home Appliances Company, in which Mr.

Abdullah AlFozan and Mr. Fozan AlFozan has an indirect interest in it,

which is a expenses related to the lease contracts with the United X
Home Appliances Company, amounted to 444,256 SR collected

during 2020, these transactions are based on commercial bases, and

there are no special conditions associated with them.

Voting on the business and contracts that will be concluded between

the company and United Home Appliances Company, in which Mr.

Abdullah AlFozan and Mr. Fozan AlFozan has an indirect interest in it,

which is services legal agreement (Extra provides support services to X
the United Home Appliances Company), the contract amount is

1,369,946 SR annually, these transactions are based on commercial

bases, and there are no special conditions associated with them.

X

Other

PWC 872,500

12
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Extra EGM
Subject of the Vote

Voting on the business and contracts that will be concluded between
the company and AlFozan Holding Company, in which Mr. Abdullah
AlFozan and Mr. Fozan AlFozan has an indirect interest in it, which is
a services legal agreement (AlFozan Holding Company provides
support services to Extra Company), the contract amount is one SR
annually, these transactions are based on commercial bases, and
there are no special conditions associated with them.

Voting on the business and contracts that will be concluded between
the company and United Home Appliances Company, in which Mr.
Abdullah AlFozan and Mr. Fozan AlFozan has an indirect interest in it,
which is a commercial Transactions, Purchases amounted to
9,033,002 SR, these transactions are based on commercial bases,
and there are no special conditions associated with them.

Voting on the business and contracts that will be concluded between
the company and AlFozan Holding Company, in which Mr. Abdullah
AlFozan and Mr. Fozan AlFozan has an indirect interest in it, which is
a commercial Transactions, Purchases amounted to 5,250,000 SR —
Sales amounted to 156,477 SR, these transactions are based on
commercial bases, and there are no special conditions associated
with them.

Voting on the business and contracts that will be concluded between
the company and Retal for Urban Development Company, in which
Mr. Abdullah AlFozan and Mr. Fozan AlFozan has an indirect interest
in it, which is a commercial Transactions, Sales amounted to 225,126
SR, these transactions are based on commercial bases, and there are
no special conditions associated with them.

Voting on the business and contracts that will be concluded between
the company and Madar Hardware Company, in which Mr. Abdullah
AlFozan and Mr. Fozan AlFozan has an indirect interest in it, which is
a commercial Transactions, Purchases amounted to 1,279,673 SR,
these transactions are based on commercial bases, and there are no
special conditions associated with them.

Voting for election of the Board members from among the candidates
for the next term commencing from 13 May 2021 and for a period of
three years, which ends on 12 May 2024.

Voting on the formation of the Audit Committee, and the definition of
its duties, work regulations and remuneration of its members for the
new term starting from 13 May 2021 and for a period of three years,
which ends on 12 May 2024, The following are the names of the
candidates Mr. Mansour AbdulAziz Rashid AlBosaily (Membership
status: Independent) Mr. Abdul Moaty Wasfy Abdul Hady (Outside the
Board) Dr. Jasem Shaheen Al Romeihy (Outside the Board) Mr.
Mohammed Farhan ben Nader (Outside the Board)

Voting on amending the remuneration policy for Board of Directors
members, committees and the Executive Management.

Voting on the policy of company’s competition standards .
UACC AGM

Voting on the Board of Directors' report for the fiscal year ending on
31/12/2020

Voting on the financial statements for the fiscal year ending on
31/12/2020

Voting on the company's auditor's report for the fiscal year ending on
31/12/2020

Voting on discharge the members of the Board of Directors from
liability for the fiscal year ending on 31-12-2020

Voting on appointing the company’s auditor from among the
candidates based on the audit committee’s recommendation to
examine, review and audit the financial statements for the second and
third quarter of the fiscal year 2021 and the first quarter of the fiscal
year 2022, and determine their fees

Voting on the updating of the audit committee charter

Approve

Alpha Capital's Vote
Reject Abstain

Other

KPMG
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UACC AGM
: Alpha Capital's Vote
SUSEE e Vel Approve Reject Abstain Other
7 Voting on the updating of the policies, criteria, and procedures for X

Board of Directors membership.
Voting on the Board of Directors recommendation to distribute an
amount of (22,000,000) as cash dividends to the shareholders for the
second half of fiscal year ending on 31/12/2020 at a rate of (0.40)
riyals per share. provided that the eligibility of the shareholders who
8 own the shares at the end of the trading day of the meeting and those X
registered in the company's shareholders register at the Securities
Depository Center (Edaa) at the end of the second trading day
following the due date, the date of the dividend distribution will be
announced later.
Abdulaziz Al
Omran, 20%
Abdullah al
Shaikh, 20%
Voting on the election of board members from among the candidates Ahmed Al
9 for the next session starting from 04/07/2021 and for a period of three Hagbani, 20%
years, which ends on 03-07-2024 AD. Abdullah Al
Sayyari, 20%
Abdullah
alAbdulatif,
20%
Voting on forming the Audit Committee, defining its duties, operating
controls, and remuneration for its members for the new session that
starts on 04/07/2021 for a period of three years, noting that the
candidates are:1- Mr. Fawaz Hamad Fawaz Al-Fawaz. Chairman of
10 the audit committee (Membership status: Independent). 2- Mr. Saud X
Mohammed Ali Al-Sabhan. Member of the audit committee
(Membership status: Independent). 3- Mr. Youssef Mohammed Ali Al-
Suhaibani. Member of the audit committee (Membership status: -
Outside the Board).
Voting on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim
11 dividends on a semi-annual or quarterly basis to shareholders for the X
fiscal year 2021.
Voting on the business and contracts that will be concluded between
the company and the Abdul Aziz bin Omran Al-Omran and Partners
Company, in which the Chairman of the Board of Directors Mr.
Abdulaziz bin Omran Al-Omran has an indirect interest in it, which is
the sale of cement to the Abdul Aziz bin Omran Al-Omran Company
during the next year and there are no special conditions on This type
of contract. and it is expected that the volume of transactions will
reach 10 million Saudi riyals.

12

Saudi electricity
001-Voting on Board of Directors' Report for the fiscal year ending on
31/12/2020 G.
002-Voting on the auditor/s report on the Company’s accounts for the
fiscal year ending on 31/12/2020 G.

003- Voting on the financial statements for the fiscal year ending on
31/12/2020 G.

004- Voting on the Board’s recommendations to distribute dividends
amounting to (2,916,615,671 SAR) to the shareholders for the fiscal
year ending on 31/12/2020 G, at an amount of (70 Halala) per each
share, representing (7%) of the capital. Provided that the entitlement
4 todividends is for shareholders holding the shares by the end of the X
trading day of the assembly date, and who are registered in the

Company's shareholders registry held with the Securities Depository

Center Company (Edaa) at the end of the second trading day

following the entitlement date.

005-Voting on discharging the liability of the Board members for the

fiscal year ending on 31/12/2020 G.

006-Voting on paying an amount of (892,500 SAR) as remuneration

to the Board members for the fiscal year ending on 31/12/2020 G.
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Saudi electricity
Subject of the Vote

Voting on appointing the auditor for the Company from among the
candidates based on the Audit Committee's recommendation. The
appointed auditor shall examine, review and audit the (second, third,
and fourth) quarters and annual financial statements, of the fiscal year
2021 G, the (first, second, third, and fourth) quarters and annual
financial statements, of the fiscal year 2022 G and the first quarter of
the fiscal year 2023 G., and the determination of the auditor's
remuneration.
Voting on delegating to the Board of Directors the authorisation
powers of the General Assembly stipulated in paragraph (1) of Article
71 of the Companies Law, for a period of one year starting from the
date of the approval by the General Assembly or until the end of the
delegated Board of Directors’ term, whichever is earlier, in
accordance with the conditions set forth in the Regulatory Rules and
Procedures issued pursuant to the Companies Law relating to Listed
Joint Stock Companies.
Voting on amending the regulations of the Nomination, Remunerations
Committee Charter.
Voting on increasing the number of Audit Committee seats from (4) to
(5) seats, whereby the number of Audit Committee members
becomes (5) members, by appointing (Dr. Ammr Khaled Kurdi - From
outside the board) Independent member in the Audit Committee,
starting from the date of the assembly's approval until the end of the
current committee’s term of office on 20/01/2024 G.
Voting on the business and contracts concluded between the
Company and (GCC ELECTRICAL TESTING LABORATORY), in
which the Board members (DR. Khalid Alsultan, Dr.Najm Al-zaid, Mr.
Rashed bin Ibrahim Sharif, Eng. Abdulkarim bin Ali Al-Ghamdi, Dr.
Raed bin Nasser Al-Rayes and Eng. Gerard Mestrallet) who are the
representatives of the Public Investment Fund, as well as the Board
member (Abdulkarim bin Ali Alghamdi) who is the representative of
Saudi Aramco Power Company, have an indirect interest. This
business is (participating in the paid-up capital increase of the GCC
ELECTRICAL TESTING LABORATORY in the same percentage of its
equity) and in amount of (SAR 63 Million).

STC EGM
Voting for the Board of Director's report for the fiscal year ending on
31/12/2020.
Voting for the report of stc auditor for the fiscal year ending on
31/12/2020.
Voting for stc consolidated financial statements for the year ending on
31/12/2020.
Voting for the amendment of Article No. (17) of stc Incorporation
document relating to the company board of directors .

Voting for the election of members of the board of directors from
among the candidates for the next term, which starts on (28/4/2021)
and lasts for three years, ending on 27/4/2024

Voting for appointing the auditor for the Company from among the
candidates based on the Audit Committee's recommendation. The
appointed auditor shall examine, review and audit the (second, third,
and fourth) quarter and annual financial statements of the fiscal year
2021, and the first quarter of the fiscal year 2022, and the
determination of the auditor's remuneration.

Voting on the Board of Directors recommendation for the additional
one-time distributions for the year 2020, of SR (1) per share which
represents 10% of the share’s par value with a total amount of SR
2,000 million, the eligibility for dividend will be to Shareholders who
own the shares on the day of Company’s general assembly and
registered in the company’s shareholders register at Securities
Depository Center by the end of the second trading day following the
day of general assembly, thus the total dividends distributed and
proposed to be distributed for the year 2020 is SR (5) per share which
represents 50% of the share’s par value with a total amount of SR
10,000 million, the distribution date will be announced later

Alpha Capital's Vote

Approve Reject Abstain Other
KPMG
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
Sara Al
Suhaimi 50%
Ahmed Al
Omran 50%
EY
X
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STC EGM
: Alpha Capital’'s Vote
SHllo RIS Approve Reject Abstain Other
Voting for the delegating the authority of the General Assembly to the
Board of Directors with the license mentioned in Paragraph (1) of
8 Article 71 of the Companies Bylaw for a period of one year from the X

date of approval of the General Assembly or until the end of the term
of Delegated Board of Directors, whichever is earlier, in accordance
with the conditions mentioned in the related regulations.
Voting for the business and contracts that have been signed between
the Company and Masdr Data Solutions, "a subsidiary of the General
Organization for Social Insurance (GOSI)". In which Mr. Ahmed bin
9  Mohammed Al-Omran "a member of the Board of Directors" has an X
indirect interest within the ordinary course of business and did not
grant any preferential benefits, with an amount of (215,000) Saudi
riyals in 2020.
Voting for paying (4,425,000) Saudi riyals as remunerations for the
board of directors members for the fiscal year ending on 31/12/2020.
BJAZ AGM

Voting to elect member of the board for the next term which will start
1 onJanuary 01, 2022 for a period of three years until December 31, X
2024.
Voting on the formation of the Audit Committee and defining its
responsibilities, working controls and the remuneration of its members
for the next term, which will start on January 01, 2022 for a period of
three years until December 31, 2024. The candidates are Dr.
AbuBaker BaGabir - Mr. Saad Ibrahim Almushawah - Mr. Fawzi
Ibrahim Alhobayb
Voting on the amendment of Audit Committee Charter. X
Voting on the amendment of Nomination &amp; Compensation
Committee Charter.
Voting on the amendment of Board of Directors and Committees
Membership Criteria Policy.
Voting to authorize the Board of Directors to distribute interim
6 dividends to the shareholders on semi-annual or quarterly basis, X

against the fiscal year 2022.

Voting to delegate the Board of Directors with the authority of the

General Assembly with the license mentioned in Section (1) of Article

(71) of the Companies Law, for a one year period effective upon the
7 AGM approval date or up to ending of the authorized Board term, X

whichever is earlier, in accordance with the Regulatory Rules and

Procedures issued pursuant to the Companies Law relating to Listed

Joint Stock Companies.

10

STC AGM

1 Vote on stc dividends policy for the next three years starting from the X
fourth quarter of 2021

Vote on the Company’s entry and execution of the Bookrunners
Agreement. For more details about the Bookrunners Agreement,
please refer to the Additional Information section below and Annex
No. 1, which includes a description of its key terms and conditions.
However, it should be noted that such terms and conditions are
subject to any amendments that the parties may agree on and which
are approved by the Board of Directors (or any of its delegates) in this
regard in accordance with the delegation.

Vote on authorizing the Company’s Board of Directors, or any person
delegated by the Board of Directors to approve the terms and
conditions of the Bookrunners Agreement and any other related
agreements, applications, documents instruments relating to the X
Secondary Offering (as defined in the additional Information Section

below) including the offering document (prospectus); and execute

such agreements and documentation and negotiate the same; and to

carry out all other actions to execute the Secondary Offering
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STC EGM -
EUDIDEILET e Vel Approve Q;?::t —r— Zt;/sc;;?n Other

Vote on ratifying all previous actions carried out by the Company’s
Board of Directors in relation to the Secondary Offering including
4 preparatory work carried out with the Public Investment Fund in X
relation to the Secondary Offering and appointment of the relevant
advisors.

SAPTCO AGM
Voting for election of the Board members from among the candidates

1 for the next term, commencing from 01/January/2022 G, for a term of X
three years, ending on 31/December/2024 G.
Voting on the formation of the Audit Committee, and the definition of
its duties, work regulations and remuneration of its members for the N

2 new term, starting from the date of the assembly on 01/January/2022
G. until the end of the term on 31/December/2024 G. The following
are the names of the candidates,
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Names of Fund
board members
and membership

type

A brief about Fund
board member’s
qualification

Name Membership type
Abdulrahman Khalid AIDamer Non-independent member
Ahmed Abdullah AlJomaih Non-independent member
Ali Asgar Lilamwala Non-independent member
Mohammed Talal Arab Non-independent member
Naif Mohammed AlJishi Independent member
Bandar Mohammed Al Damir Independent member

Abdulrahman Khalid AlDamer:

Abdulrahman is currently the Chief Operating Officer at Alpha
Capital Company. Prior to his current position, Abdulrahman was
heading the M&A’s team within the CMA and was responsible for
supervising M&A transactions, policy formulation, proposals and led
the technical implementation of the updated M&A regulations.
Abdulrahman holds a BS degree in Finance from Prince Sultan
University, and an MS in International Finance, from the University of

Leeds, Untied Kingdom.

Ahmed Abdullah AlJomaih:

Ahmed is currently the Co head of Asset management at Alpha
Capital Company. Prior to his current position, Ahmed managed to
accumulate more than ten years of extensive Asset Management
experience where he was heading the Equity team at HSBC Saudi
Arabia, managing local & GCC Equities. He holds a BA in Finance
from King Fahd University of Petroleum and Minerals and MS in
Corporate Finance from Henley Business School at the University of

Reading in Britain.
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A brief about Fund
board member’s
qualification

Ali Asqar Lilamwala:

Aliis currently the Co head of Asset management at Alpha Capital
Company. He has more than14 years of experience in investment
management. He previously led all functions of asset management
business in EFG-Hermes Saudi Arabia. Prior to that, he was at
MASIC where he developed internal reporting structure, asset
allocation for funds, evaluation, and performance analysis. Ali holds

MS from University of Oklahoma, and is a CFA Charterholder.

Mohammed Talal Arab:

Mohammed is the CEO of the Sulaymaniyah Investment Group and

has more than seven years of experience in leadership positions.
Mohammed holds a Bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering from
King Fahd University of Petroleum and Minerals in Dhahran and a
Master’s degree in Management from State University of Colorado in

the United States of America.

Naif Mohammed AlJishi:

Naif is the founding president of Alpha International Group for

Management Consulting. He has more than ten years of experience
in the fields of management consulting and corporate finance. Naif
holds a Bachelor of Science from King Fahd University of Petroleum
and Minerals in Dhahran and a Master’s in Design and Branding

Strategy management from Brunel University in London.

Bandar Mohammed Al Damir:

Bandar is the Chairman of Mira Food Company since 2008, and the
Chairman of Union Investment Joint Stock Company. He also held
several administrative and investment positions in the private sector
during his twenty years of practical experience. Bandar holds a

Bachelor in Political Science from King Saud University in Riyadh.
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= Approving material contracts, decisions and reports involving the
fund.

= Approve a written policy in regard to the voting rights related to
the fund assets.

= Overseeing and, where appropriate, approving or ratifying any
conflicts of interest the fund manager has identified.

= Meeting at least twice annually with the fund manager’s
compliance committee or its compliance officer to review the fund
manager’'s compliance with all applicable rules, laws and
regulations.

= Approving all changes stipulated in Articles (62) and (63) of
investment fund regulations before the fund manager obtains the
approval or notification of the unitholders and the Authority.

= Confirming the completeness and accuracy (complete, clear,

e accurate, and not misleading), and compliance with investment
member’s roles fund Regulations, of the fund’s terms and conditions and of any
and duties

other document.

= Ensuring that the fund manager carries out its obligations in the
best interests of the unitholders, in accordance with investment
fund regulations, the fund’s terms and conditions.

= Reviewing the report that includes assessment of the
performance and quality of services provided by the parties
involved in providing significant services to the fund referred to in
investment fund regulations.

= Assessing the mechanism of the fund manager’s handling of the
risks related to the fund’s assets in accordance with the fund
manager’s policies and procedures that detect the fund’s risks
and how to treat such risks.

= Have a fiduciary duty to unitholders, including a duty to act in
good faith, a duty to act in the best interests of the unitholders

and a duty to exercise all reasonable care and skill.

20
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Fund board
member’s roles
and duties (Cont.)

Fund board
members
remuneration

Conflict of interest

Taking minutes of meetings that provide all deliberations and
facts of the meetings and the decisions taken by the fund’s board
of director.

Review the report containing all complaints and the measures
taken regarding them referred to in investment fund regulations

and fund terms and conditions.

The remuneration for independent directors is 2,000 SAR per
meeting and a maximum of 10,000 SAR per year for each

independent member.

The fund manager, its shareholders, subsidiaries and affiliates, any of

their respective directors, officers, employees and agents may be

involved in other financial, investment or professional activities which may

on occasion cause conflicts of interest with the fund. The fund’s board
shall use reasonable endeavors to avoid any such conflict. However,

when and if any such conflict arises, the fund manager and the fund’s

board will make a full disclosure to the unitholders as soon as feasible and

will endeavor to resolve the conflict fairly in accordance with the
applicable laws and regulations. As of the date of this report, there were
no material conflict of interests which may adversely affect the fund

boards and fund manager's performance of their duties towards the fund.

21
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Name Membership into other funds

Membership
relevant to other

Alpha Murabaha Fund
Alpha Real Estate

funds Abdulrahman Khalid AlDamer Development Fund 1

Fund Board
Annual Report

Alpha Real Estate
Development Fund 2

There were two fund board meetings during 2021 as follows:
The first meeting for ASEF was held on Aug 8th , 2021 with the

below agenda:

Overview of Alpha Saudi Equity Fund.

Approval of board resolution by circulation from last
board meeting which include the changes in fund terms
and conditions.

Review of fund manger risk related checklist.

Approve the annual report for 2020

Approve the quarterly reports for 2021

Review the compliance and Money Laundering related
topics.

Discuss any additional update

On Aug 2021, resolution by circulation to approve the semi-
annual report for 2021.
The second meeting for ASEF was held on Dec 20th , 2021

and has as agenda the below:

Overview of Alpha Saudi Equity Fund.

Approval of board resolution by circulation from last
board meeting which include the changes in fund terms
and conditions.

Review of fund manger risk related checklist.

Approve the quarterly reports for 2021

Review the compliance and Money Laundering related
topics.

Discuss any additional update.
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Fund Manager Information

Fund manager
name

Address

Manager & sub
manager

Alpha Capital Company

12371 PO BOX: 8596 Riyadh, Prince Turki Bin Abdulaziz AlAwwal,
King Saud University.

Tel: 920033594

www.alphacapital.com.sa

The fund manager is Alpha Capital Company which is responsible

for managing the fund's assets, and no Sub Fund Manager is used.

Investment Activities and Performance

Review of
Investment
Activities During
the Period

Investment Fund’s
Performance
During the Period

Details of changes
during the period
in fund T&Cs and
information
memorandum

During the period from the date of inception (25/07/2018) until the
date of the report (29/12/2021), the fund invested its assets in
shares of Saudi listed companies that are compliant with the shariah

principals.

The fund’s performance since YTD stood at 39.79.14% v/s 30.42% for the
benchmark. The fund outperformed its benchmark YTD by 9.38%.

The fund’s performance since inception stood at 95.12% v/s 42.72% for
the benchmark. The fund outperformed its benchmark since inception by
52.40%.

During the year, the fund manager has made certain changes to the

terms and conditions of the fund stated as follows:

Auditor’s fees is updated from SR 25,000 annually to SR 45,000
annually (exclusive of value-added tax) and will be paid on semi-annual

basis.

Custodian fees charged previously at the rate of 0.08% is amended to
0.03% (exclusive of value-added tax) of the net assets value
calculated based on the Fund’s daily net assets value and is paid

monthly.

Updating the Fund administrator of the Fund to be Alpha Capital

Company and changes in the other duties of the Fund Manager
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Shariah guidelines regarding the interest-bearing loans are updated to

Details of changes be not more than 33.33% of the average market capitalization over the
during the period last 12 months or the total assets of the investee Company,

in fund T&Cs and , _

information whichever's higher.

memorandum

On 23 December 2021, fund term and conditions has been updated

to reflect the new Investment Fund Regulations (IFR).

Other Key Disclosures

Other Information

o1 Unit Elolders There were no breaches during the reporting period.

Investments into There were no investment into other fund during the reporting
other funds period.
Spemql . There were no special commission received during the reporting
commission :

period.
arrangements
Other data and A revision of NAV/unit took place on 13" of Sep 2021 resulting in a

other information

required by the
Investment Funds & the custodian. This revision was rectified within one business day

Regulations

difference of 0.001% due to irregular trade flow between the broker

and the effect was positive for the benefit of unitholders.

Period of service
of the person
registered as a Since 215t of May 2019
manager for the
Fund

Expense ratio of
each underlying
fund and the
weighted average Not Applicable
expense ratio of
all underlying
funds
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Custodian Name

Address

Custodian Main
Duties and
Responsibilities

AlBilad Investment Company

Smart Tower, King Fahad Road, Riyadh 8162 King Fahad Road —
Olaya, Riyadh 12313-3701, Saudi Arabia
Tel: +966920003636.

Email: Clientservices@albilad-capital.com.

www.albilad-capital.com

Safekeeping of Securities.
Statement of Trades.
Corporate Action Management.
Income Booking.

Funds Transfers.

Foreign Exchange.


mailto:Clientservices@albilad-capital.com
http://www.albilad-capital.com/
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Fund Operator

Fund Operator
Name

Address

Operator Main
Duties and
Responsibilities

Alpha Capital Company

12371 PO BOX: 8596 Riyadh, Prince Turki Bin Abdulaziz AlAwwal,
King Saud University.
Tel: 920033594

www.alphacapital.com.sa

The fund operator is responsible for valuing the assets of the public
fund. In so doing, the fund operator shall conduct a full and fair
valuation.

The asset of fund is valued by the fund operator each dealing day at
such time as specified in the Terms and Conditions of such public
fund, and for the duration not exceeding one day from the deadline
for submission of requests for subscription or redemption.

The fund operator must comply with the Annex (5) in the investment
fund regulations in relation to valuation of the fund.

The fund operator shall be responsible for calculating the price of the
units in a public fund that it operates. The price of units for
subscriptions and redemptions on any dealing day shall be calculated
by reference to the net asset value per unit of the public fund at the
valuation point on the relevant dealing day.

The fund operator must record each instance where an asset of the
fund is valued incorrectly, or the price of a unit is calculated
incorrectly.

The fund operator is responsible for operating investment funds.
The fund manager and fund operator must maintain all books and
records in accordance with the regulations.

The fund operator must maintain -at all times- records of all units
issued and cancelled and must maintain an up to date record of the

balance of outstanding units for each fund under its operation.
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Auditor Information

Auditor Name

Address

Auditor’s
Statement
Regarding The
Fund’s Latest
Audited Financial
Statements

Alluhaid & Alyahya Chartered Accountants

Grand Tower, King Fahad Road, Al Muhammadiyah district. P.O.
Box 85453, Riyadh 11691.

Tel: +96611 269 3516.

Fax: +966 11 488 9639.

WwWw.aca.Com.sa

The auditor’s statement is available in the audited financial

statements in the last section of this report


http://www.aca.com.sa/
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The Fund'’s audited financial statements for the financial year ending 31
December 2021 are presented on the following pages.

Note: Fund’s Reports are available upon request free of charge.
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Alluhaid & Alyahya Chartered Accountants

Ta |" o ¥ Ko I" License No. (735) CR:1010468314
mn [T] g T Paid Up capital SR 100,000

jaligilo | guulnag A Limited Liability Company
UgHgloyal Kingdom of Saudi Arabia Riyadh King Fahd Road,
ALLUHAID & ALYAHYA Muhammadiyah District, Garnd Tower 12th Floor
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Unitholders of Alpha Saudi Equity Fund
(Managed by Alpha Capital Company)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Alpha Saudi Equity Fund (the “Fund”) managed by Alpha Capital Company (the “Fund
Manager”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the related statements of
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including

a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Fund as at
31 December 2021 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements
that are endorsed by the Saudi Organisation for Chartered and Professional Accountants (“SOCPA”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”) that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the professional code of conduct and ethics
that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that are relevant to our audit of the Fund’s financial statements and we have
fulfilied our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information included in the Fund’s 2021 Annual Report

The Fund Manager is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Fund’s
2021 annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Fund’s 2021 annual report
is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it
becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Fund’s 2021 annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of the Fund Manager and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Fund Manager is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS that
are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements that are endorsed by the SOCPA and the
applicable provisions of the Investment Funds Regulations issued by the Board of Capital Market Authority, and the Fund’s terms
and conditions and the information memorandum, and for such internal control as the Fund Manager determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Fund Manager is responsible for assessing the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Fund Manager
either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Fund’s financial reporting process.
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT {continued)
To the Unitholders of Alpha Saudi Equity Fund
(Managed by Alpha Capital Company)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs that are endorsed in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Fund Manager.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Fund Manager’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

for Alluhaid & Alyahya Chartered Accountants

KWL YL (TRt

professional
Licensa No. 735
€.R: 1010468314

Turki A. Alluhaid
Certified Public Accountant
License No. 438

Riyadh: 24 Sha’ban 1443H
(27 March 2022)
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Alpha Saudi Equity Fund
(Managed by Alpha Capital Company)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2021

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
Receivable against disposal of financial asset at FVTPL
Advances for acquisition of financial asset at FVTPL

Other receivables

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Redemption payable

Management and administration fees payable
Director’s fees payable

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Net assets attributable to unitholders of redeemable units

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Redeemable units in issue (numbers)

Net assets value attributable to per unit (SR)

Note

The attached notes 1 to 11 form an integral part of these financial statements

2021 2020
SR SR
299,014 862,537
43,485,953 19,436,713
6,699,286 -
307,670 -
10,353 4,603
50,802,276 20,303,853
6,624,412 -
253,143 109,594
28,000 32,712
165,475 78,367
7,071,030 220,673
43,731,246 20,083,180
50,802,276 20,303,853
2,221,121 1,452,327
19.69 13.83
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Alpha Saudi Equity Fund
(Managed by Alpha Capital Company)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2021

INCOME

Income (loss) from financial assets at FVTPL:
Unrealised loss
Realised gain

Dividend income

TOTAL INCOME

OPERATING EXPENSES
Management fees

Transaction costs

Administration fees

Professional fees

Director’s fees reversal (expenses)
Custodian fees

Value-added tax expenses

Other operating expenses

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR
Other comprehensive income

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

The attached notes 1 to 11 form an integral part of these financial statements

Note

wn

2021 2020
SR SR
(670,916) (462,032)

10,281,041 2,636,757
756,181 498,647
10,366,306 2,673,372
(520,540) (405,323)
(139,486) (145,666)
(112,500) (112,500)
(50,646) (40,000)
4,712 (20,000)
9,177 (10,129)
(110,714) (55,402)
(53,779) (78,187)
(992,130) (867,207)
9,374,176 1,806,165
9,374,176 1,806,165
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Alpha Saudi Equity Fund
(Managed by Alpha Capital Company)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income for the year

Adjustments for:
Unrealised loss from the financial assets at FVTPL
Dividend income

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets at FVTPL
Increase in other receivables
Increase in receivable against disposal of financial assets at FVTPL
Increase in advances for acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL
Increase/(decrease) in management and administration fees payable
(Decrease)/increase in director’s fees payable
Increase in accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Increase in redemption payable

Cashflows (used in) from operations
Dividends received

Net cashflows (used in) from operating activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of units

Payments against redemption of units

Net cash from (used in) financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR

The attached notes 1 to 11 form an integral part of these financial statements

2021 2020
SR SR
9,374,176 1,806,165
670,916 462,034
(756,181) (498,647)
9,288,911 1,769,552
(24,720,156) 14,617,761
(5,750) (3,690)
(6,699,286) -
(307,670) -
143,549 (69,433)
4,712) 4,000
87,108 54,644
6,624,412 -
(15,593,594) 16,372,834
756,181 498,647
(14,837,413) 16,871,481
37,923,328 1,550,000
(23,649,438) (20,594,710)
14,273,890 (19,044,710)
(563,523) (2,173,229)
862,537 3,035,766
299,014 862,537
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Alpha Saudi Equity Fund
(Managed by Alpha Capital Company)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2021

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE REDEEMABLE
UNITHOLDERS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

Comprehensive income:
Net income for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
CHANGE FROM UNIT TRANSACTIONS
Proceeds from issuance of units
Payments against redemption of units
Net change from unit transactions
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE REDEEMABLE
UNITHOLDERS AT THE END OF THE YEAR
REDEEMABLE UNIT TRANSACTIONS

Transactions in redeemable units for the year are summarised as follows:

UNITS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
Units issued during the year
Units redeemed during the year

UNITS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT THE END OF THE YEAR

The attached notes 1 to 11 form an integral part of these financial statements

2021 2020
SR SR
20,083,180 37,321,725
9,374,176 1,806,165
9,374,176 1,806,165
29,457,356 39,127,890
37,923,328 1,550,000
(23,649,438) (20,594,710)
14,273,890 (19,044,710)
43,731,246 20,083,180
2021 2020
Units Units
1,452,327 3,144,868
2,068,321 129,542
(1,299,528) (1,822,083)
2,221,120 1,452,327
19.69 13.83
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Alpha Saudi Equity Fund
(Managed by Alpha Capital Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2021

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Alpha Saudi Equity Fund (the “Fund”) is an open-ended fund created by agreement between Alpha Capital Company
and investors (“the unitholders™) in the Fund. The main activity of the Fund is to achieve medium to long-term capital
growth for unitholders through investing in the shares of the companies listed on the Saudi Stock Exchange, in
accordance with the shariah regulations for investment.

The Fund was offered for subscription under the laws and regulations of CMA on 14 Shawal 1439H (corresponding
to 28 June 2018). The Fund commenced its operations on 12 Dhul-Qa’dah 1439H (corresponding to 25 July 2018).

The Fund is managed by Alpha Capital Company (the "Fund Manager"), a closed joint stock company with
commercial registration number 1010936196, licensed by the Capital Market Authority of the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia (“CMA”) under license number 33-18187.

The Fund’s Manager registered office is P.O. Box 54854, Riyadh 12371, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The last valuation day of the year was 29 December 2021. However, the financial statements of the Fund has been
prepared based on the special valuation as of 31 December 2021.

The Fund has appointed Albilad Investment Company (the “Custodian”) to act as its custodian. The fees of the
custodian are paid by the Fund.

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 Sha’ban 1443H (corresponding
to 27 March 2022).

1.1 Changes in terms and conditions
The Fund Manager has made general amendments in the terms and conditions of the Fund in accordance with the
Investment Fund Regulations published by the CMA, which also includes the following changes:

i Auditor’s fees is updated from SR 25,000 annually to SR 45,000 annually (exclusive of value-added tax)
and will be paid on semi-annual basis.

ii.  Custodian fees charged previously at the rate of 0.08% is amended to 0.03% (exclusive of value-added tax)
of the net assets value calculated based on the Fund’s daily net assets value and is paid monthly.

iii.  Updating the Fund administrator to be Alpha Capital Company and changes in the other duties of the Fund
Manager

iv. Shariah guidelines regarding the interest-bearing loans are updated to be not more than 33.33% of the
average market capitalisation over the last 12 months or the total assets of the investee Company, whichever
is higher.

2 REGULATING AUTHORITY

The Fund is governed by the Investment Fund Regulations (the “Regulations”) issued by the CMA detailing
requirements for all Investment Funds within the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The summary of significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below.

3.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncement that are endorsed by
the Saudi Organisation for Chartered and Professional Accountants, (collectively hereafter referred to as IFRS as
endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia).




Alpha Saudi Equity Fund

(Managed by Alpha Capital Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
31 December 2021

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention using the accrual basis of accounting
except for financial assets held at FVTPL that are measured at fair value.

The Fund Manager has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going
concern.

The Fund presents its statement of financial position in order of liquidity based on the Fund Manager’s intention and
perceived ability to recover/settle the majority of assets/liabilities of the corresponding financial statement line item.
An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12
months after the reporting date (non-current) is presented in note 8.

The preparation of these financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
the Fund Manager to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Fund’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

3.2 Standards and amendments to existing standards effective 1 January 2021

The Fund applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 (unless otherwise stated).

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 1 6)

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an interbank offered
rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (RFR). The amendments include the following
practical expedients:

e A practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly required by
the reform, to be treated as changes to a floating interest rate, equivalent to a movement in a market rate of
interest.

® Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued.

® Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an
RFR instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk component.

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendments to IFRS 1 6)

On 28 May 2020, the IASB issued Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions - amendment to IFRS 16 Leases. The
amendments provide relief to lessees from applying IFRS 16 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect
not to assess whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes
this election accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same
way it would account for the change under IFRS 16, if the change were not a lease modification.

The amendment was intended to apply until 30 June 2021, but as the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic is continuing,
on 31 March 2021, the JASB extended the period of application of the practical expedient to 30 June 2022.The
amendment applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Fund.




Alpha Saudi Equity Fund

(Managed by Alpha Capital Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
31 December 2021

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.3 New standards, amendments and interpretations effective on or after 1 January 2022 and have not
early adopted

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance
of the Fund’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Fund intends to adopt these new and amended standards
and interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective.

Standards / amendments to standards / interpretations Effective date
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17 1 January 2023
Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2023
Reference to the conceptual framework (Amendments to IFRS 3) 1 January 2022
Property, plant and equipment, proceeds before intended use (Amendments to IAS 16) 1 January 2022
Onerous contracts — Cost of fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37) 1 January 2022
Annual improvement to IFRS 9, IFRS 16, IFRS 1, and I4S 41 1 January 2022
Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9 (Amendments to IFRS 4) 1 January 2023
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current — Deferral of Effective Date

(Amendments to IAS 1) 1 Januvary 2023

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) 1 January 2023

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

(Amendments to IAS 12) 1 January 2023

Definition of accounting estimates (IAS 8) 1 January 2023
34 Foreign currency translation

a) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Saudi Arabian Riyals (“SR”), which is the Fund’s functional and
presentation currency. All financial information presented has been rounded to the nearest SR.

b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rate prevailing at the statement of financial position date,

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from translation are included in the statement of comprehensive income.

3.5 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash with a bank and other short-term highly liquid investments, if any, with
maturities of three months or less from the purchase date.




Alpha Saudi Equity Fund
(Managed by Alpha Capital Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
31 December 2021

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.6 Financial instruments
3.6.1  Financial Instruments - Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Fund commits to purchase or sell the asset.

i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value through
profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Fund’s business model for managing them. In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an
instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. The Fund’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following categories

Financial assets held for trading
In applying that classification, a financial asset is considered to be held for trading if:

(a) It is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term; or

(b) On initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for
which, there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

(c) It is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging
instrument),

Held-for-trading assets are recorded and measured in the statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair
value are recognised in net trading income. Interest and dividend income or expense is recorded in net trading income
according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to payment has been established.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
The Fund’s financial assets at amortised cost includes cash and cash equivalent and receivables.
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Alpha Saudi Equity Fund

(Managed by Alpha Capital Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
31 December 2021

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Financial instruments (continued)

3.6.1  Financial Instruments - Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
i) Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL *)

Financial assets in this category are those that are not held for trading and have been either designated by management
upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured at fair value under IFRS 9. Management only
designates an instrument at FVPL upon initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met. Such
designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

(a) Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding;

(b) It is not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash flows, or to both collect
contractual cash flows and sell; and

(c) The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with
net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes listed equity investments which the Fund had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through OCIL. Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Fund’s statement of financial position) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

¢  The Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and
either (a) the Fund has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Fund has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Fund continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Fund’s continuing involvement. In that case, the
Fund also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Fund has retained.

Impairment

The Fund recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Fund expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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Alpha Saudi Equity Fund

(Managed by Alpha Capital Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
31 December 2021

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Financial instruments (continued)

3.6.1  Financial Instruments - Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
i) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment (continued)

For dividend and other receivables, the Fund applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Fund
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Fund has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

i) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

The Fund’s financial liabilities include redemption payable, management and administration fees payable and other
liabilities. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
This category includes all financial liabilities, other than those measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This is the category most relevant to the Fund. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

This category generally applies to redemption payable, management and administration fees payable and other
liabilities.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

iii) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
seitle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is generally not the case with
master netting agreements unless one party to the agreement defaults and the related assets and liabilities are presented
gross in the statement of financial position.
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Alpha Saudi Equity Fund
(Managed by Alpha Capital Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
31 December 2021

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.7 Fair value measurement
The Fund measures financial instruments such as equity instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

*  In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Fund uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy. This is described, as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

* Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

¢ Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Fund
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each year. The Fund
determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, and for non-recurring
measurement.

At each reporting date, the Fund analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to
be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Fund’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the Fund verifies the major
inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other
relevant documents. The Fund also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Fund has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.
Fair value related disclosures for financial instruments that are measured at fair value or where fair values are
disclosed are discussed in note 7.

3.8 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it

is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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Alpha Saudi Equity Fund

(Managed by Alpha Capital Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
31 December 2021

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Accrued expenses

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for services received, whether billed by the suppliers
or not. These are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method.

3.10  Redeemable units
Redeemable units are classified as equity instruments when:

¢  The redeemable units entitle the Unitholder to a pro rata share of the Fund’s net assets in the event of the Fund’s
liquidation
The redeemable units are in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of instruments
All redeemable units in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of instruments have
identical features

*  The redeemable units do not include any contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset other
than the Unitholder’s rights to a pro rata share of the Fund’s net assets

e The total expected cash flows attributable to the redeemable units over the life of the instrument are based
substantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recognised net assets or the change in the fair value of the
recognised and unrecognised net assets of the Fund over the life of the instrument

In addition to the redeemable units having all of the above features, the Fund must have no other financial instrument
or contract that has:

* Total cash flows based substantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recognised net assets or the change in
the fair value of the recognised and unrecognised net assets of the Fund
e  The effect of substantially restricting or fixing the residual return to the redeemable unitholders

The Fund continuously assesses the classification of the redeemable units. If the redeemable units cease to have all
the features, or meet all the conditions set out, to be classified as equity, the Fund will reclassify them as financial
Liabilities and measure them at fair value at the date of reclassification, with any differences from the previous carrying
amount recognised in net assets attributable to the Unitholders. If the redeemable units subsequently have all the
features and meet the conditions to be classified as equity, the Fund will reclassify them as equity instruments and
measure them at the carrying amount of the liabilities at the date of the reclassification.

The issuance, acquisition and cancellation of redeemable units are accounted for as equity transactions. No gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on the purchase, issuance or cancellation of the Fund’s
own equity instruments

3.11  Net assets value per unit

The net assets value per unit disclosed in the statement of financial position is calculated by dividing the net assets
value of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the period end.

312  Management fees, custodian fees and other expenses

Management fees, administration fees, custodian fess and other expenses are charged at rates / amounts within limits
mentioned in terms and conditions of the Fund.

3.13 Zakat and income tax

Fund is not liable to pay any zakat or income tax which are considered to be the obligation of the Unitholders and are
as such not provided in the accompanying financial statements.
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Alpha Saudi Equity Fund
(Managed by Alpha Capital Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
31 December 2021

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.14 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on the date on which the right to receive
the payment for dividend is established. For quoted equity securities, this is usually the ex-dividend date. For unquoted
equity securities, this is usually the date on which the shareholders approve the payment of a dividend. Dividend
income from equity securities designated as at FVTPL is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in a
separate line item.

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the Fund’s financial statements in conformity with the International Financial Reporting Standards
as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the year. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The Fund makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates, by definition, may differ from the related actual results.

Significant areas where management has used estimates, assumptions or exercised judgements are as follows:

Going concern

The Board of Director, in conjunction with the Fund Manager has made an assessment of the Fund’s ability to continue
as going concern and satisfied that the Fund has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future.
Furthermore, the management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the
Fund’s ability to continue as going concemn. Therefore, the financial statements continued to be prepared on the going

concem basis.

Fair value measurement

The Fund measures its investments in equity instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability or, in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible to the Fund. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For all other financial instruments not traded in an active market, if any, the fair value is determined using valuation
techniques deemed to be appropriate in the circumstances. Valuation techniques include the market approach (i.e.,
using recent arm’s length market transactions, adjusted as necessary, and reference to the current market value of
another instrument that is substantially the same) and the income approach (i.e., discounted cash flow analysis and
option pricing models making as much use of available and supportable market data as possible).

The Fund measures financial instruments at fair value at each statement of financial position date. Fair values of those
financial instruments are disclosed in Note 5.
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Alpha Saudi Equity Fund
(Managed by Alpha Capital Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
31 December 2021

5 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The composition and geographical exposure of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss on the last valuation
day is summarized below:

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Market Market
Quoted equity investments (by country) CS‘;;t vgzle (?S‘;;t vglltzte
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 41,530,800 43,485,953 16,810,644 19,436,713

The gains (losses) of financial assets through profit or loss is as follows:

2021 2020
SR SR
Realised gain from disposal of equity instruments 10,281,041 2,636,757
Unrealised loss from net changes in fair value of equity instruments (670,916) (462,032)

9,610,125 2,174,725

The Fund also manages its exposure to price risk by analysing the investment portfolio by industrial sector. The
Fund’s policy is to concentrate the investment portfolio in sectors where Fund Manager believes the Fund can
maximise the returns derived for the level of risk to which the Fund is exposed.

The Fund had no concentrations in individual equity positions exceeding 15% (2020: 10%) of the net assets
attributable to unitholders. The table below is a summary of the significant sector concentrations within the equity
investment portfolio. Investment concentration according to industry group of the investment portfolio of the Fund is
disclosed in the table below:

Industry group 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Cost Fair value % of market Cost Fair value % of market
SR SR value SR SR value

Banks 12,525,661 13,592,646 31.69 2,101,974 2,546,912 13.10
Materials 10,178,820 10,210,022 23.81 3,396,512 3,928,768 20.21
Consumer services 3,248,835 3,265,831 7.62 1,483,662 1,598,025 8.22
Utilities 2,856,766 2,996,703 6.99 693,928 799,858 4.12
Insurance 2,545,594 2,463,291 5.74 1,387,512 1,856,067 9.54
Telecommunication 1,965,500 2,209,222 5.15 1,777,090 1,948,863 10.03
Capital goods 1,982,228 2,170,775 5.06 526,790 629,420 3.24
Software and services 1,798,793 2,101,253 4.90 - - -
Health care equipment

and services 1,422,331 1,488,332 347 834,581 978,930 5.04
Transportation 1,590,647 1,212,408 2.83 1,084,722 1,126,620 5.80
Retailing 1,415,625 1,775,470 274 1,780,976 2,152,358 11.07
Food and beverages - - - 1,273,170 1,288,625 6.63
Food and staples

retailing - - - 469,727 582,267 3.00

41,530,800 43,485,953 160.00 16,810,644 19,436,713 100.00
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Alpha Saudi Equity Fund

(Managed by Alpha Capital Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
31 December 2021

6 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The Fund Manager and entities / persons
related to Fund Manager and the Fund’s Board of Directors are considered as related parties of the Fund. In the
ordinary course of its activities, the Fund transacts business with its related parties.

a) Management and administration fee

The Fund Manager is responsible for the overall management of the Fund’s activities. The Fund Manager charges
management fee at the rate of 1.45% that are calculated twice a week based on the net assets of the Fund. Total
management fee for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to SR 520,540 (31 December 2020: SR 405,323),
exclusive of value-added tax, with SR 232,867 in outstanding accrued fees due to the Fund Manager as at 31
December 2021 (31 December 2020: SR 93,253).

The Fund manager charges administration fee higher of SR 112,500 or at a rate of 0.07% of the net assets of the Fund
that are calculated on a daily basis, with a minimum monthly fee of SR 9,375. Total administration fee for 31
December 2021 amounted to SR 112,500 (31 December 2020: SR 112,500), exclusive of value-added tax, with SR
20,276 in outstanding accrued fees due to the Fund Manager as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: SR 16,341).

In addition, the Fund Manager charges subscription fee at the rate of 2% of the subscription value from the Fund’s
unitholders, however such fee has been waived by the Fund Manager for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

b) Board of Directors remuneration

During the year, additional accruals pertaining to the directors fees of prior periods have been reversed amounting to
SR 24,712. The amount reflected in the statement of comprehensive income amounting to SR 4,712 is net of current
period remuneration amounting to SR 20,000, with SR 28,000 in outstanding accrued fees as at 31 December 2021.

The total remuneration accrued to the Board of Directors for the year ended 31 December 2020 was SR 20,000 and
consisted of a fixed fee.

) Subscriptions and redemptions of units of the other funds managed by the Fund Manager

During the year, the Fund had subscribed 1,444 units (2020: 2,639 units) of Alpha Capital IPO Fund amounting to
SR 14,436 (2020: SR 26,393) and redeemed 1,444 units (2020: 2,639 units) amounting to SR 22,854 (2020: SR
33,988) with no outstanding units as at 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Fund had subscribed 1,714,261 units of Alpha Murabaha Fund
amounting to SR 17,900,000 and redeemed 1,714,261 units amounting to SR 17,924,629 with no outstanding units
as at 31 December 2020.

d) Subscriptions and redemptions of Fund units

During the year, the shareholders of the Fund Manager had subscribed nil (2020: nil) units of the Fund amounting to
SR nil (2020: SR nil) and redeemed 200,000 units (2020: nil) amounting to SR 3,947,764 (2020: SR nil) with 215,829
outstanding units as at 31 December 2021 (2020 :415,829 units).
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Alpha Saudi Equity Fund

(Managed by Alpha Capital Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
31 December 2021

7 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
7.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Fund’s activities are exposed to variety of financial risks such as: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Fund’s overall risk management program seeks to maximize the returns derived for the level of risk to which the Fund
is exposed and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Fund’s financial performance. The Fund Manager
has in place policies and procedures to identify risks affecting the Fund’s investments and to ensure that such risks
are addressed as soon as possible, which include conducting a risk assessment at least once a year.

The Fund Manager also applies a prudent spread of risk while taking into consideration the Fund’s investment policies
and the terms and conditions. Furthermore, the Fund Manager shall make every effort to ensure that sufficient liquidity
is available to meet any anticipated recovery request. The Board of the Fund plays a role in ensuring that the Fund
Manager fulfils its responsibilities to the benefit of the unitholders in accordance with the provisions of the Investment
Funds Regulations and the terms and conditions of the Fund.

The Fund uses different methods to measure and manage the various types of risk to which it is exposed; these
methods are explained below.

711 Market risk
a) Commission rate risk

Commission rate risk is the risk that the value of future cash flows of a financial instrument or fair values of fixed
coupon financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market commission rates. The Fund is not subject to
commission rate risk, as it does not have any commission bearing financial instruments.

b) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange
rates. The Fund’s financial assets and financial liabilities are denominated in Saudi Riyal and therefore the Fund is
not exposed to any currency risks on these financial instruments.

c) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the Fund’s financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices caused by factors other than foreign currency and commission rate movements.

The price risk arises primarily from uncertainty about the future prices of the financial instruments that the Fund
holds. The Fund Manager closely monitors the price movement of its financial instruments listed on stock exchange.
The Fund manages the risk through diversification of its investment portfolio by investing in various industry sectors.

Sensitivity analysis

The Fund’s financial assets at FVTPL are subject to equity price risk. According to the Fund’s management, the effect
on the statement of comprehensive income as a result of a change in fair value of equity instruments due to a
reasonable possible change in equity indices, with all other variables held constant is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
SR SR
TASI Index:
5% increase 2,174,298 971,836
5% decrease (2,174,298) (971,836)
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Alpha Saudi Equity Fund

(Managed by Alpha Capital Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
31 December 2021

7 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

7.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)
7.1.2  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in realizing funds to meet commitments associated
with financial liabilities.

The Fund’s terms and conditions provide for subscriptions and redemptions of units throughout the week and the
Fund is therefore, exposed to the liquidity risk of not meeting unitholder redemptions. The Fund’s securities are
considered to be readily realizable and they can be liquidated at any time. However, the Fund Manager has established
certain liquidity guidelines for the Fund and monitors liquidity requirements on a regular basis to ensure sufficient
funds are available to meet any commitments as they arise, either through new subscriptions, liquidation of the
investment portfolio or by obtaining financing from the related parties of the Fund.

The undiscounted value of all financial liabilities of the Fund at the reporting date approximate to their carrying values
and all are to be settled within one year from the reporting date.

7.1.3 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss. The Fund does not have a formal internal grading mechanism.

Credit risk is managed and controlled by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific
counterparties and continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties. Credit risks are generally managed
on the basis of external credit ratings of the counterparties. The Fund Manager seeks to limit its credit risk by
monitoring credit exposure and by dealing with reputed counterparties.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of financial position:

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
SR SR
Receivable against disposal of financial asset at FVTPL 6,699,286 -
Advances for acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL 307,670 -
Cash and cash equivalents 299,014 862,537
Other receivables 10,353 4,603
Total exposure to credit risk 7,316,323 867,140

7.2 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The capital of the Fund is represented by the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units. The amount of net
asset attributable to holders of redeemable units can change significantly on each valuation day, as the Fund is subject
to subscriptions and redemptions at the discretion of unitholders on every valuation day, as well as changes resulting
from the Fund’s performance. The Fund’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Fund’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for unitholders, provide benefits for other stakeholders and
maintain a strong net asset base to support the development of the investment activities of the Fund.

In order to maintain the capital structure, the Fund’s policy is to monitor the level of subscriptions and redemptions
relative to the assets it expects to be able to liquidate.

The Fund Board and the Fund Manager monitor capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to
redeemable unitholders.
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Alpha Saudi Equity Fund

(Managed by Alpha Capital Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
31 December 2021

7 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
7.3 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Fund has investments at fair value through profit or loss which is measured at fair values and are classified within
level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. Management believes that the fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities
are classified as amortized cost and at the reporting date approximate their carrying values owing to their short-term
tenure and the fact that these are readily liquid. These are all classified within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. There
were no transfers between various levels of fair value hierarchy during the current year or prior year.

8 MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Within After

12 months 12 months Total
As at 31 December 2021 (SR) (SR) SR
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 299,014 - 299,014
Financial assets at FVTPL 43,485,953 - 43,485,953
Receivable against disposal of financial asset at FVTPL 6,699,286 - 6,699,286
Advances for acquisition of financial assets at FVITPL 307,670 - 307,670
Other receivables 10,353 - 10,353
TOTAL ASSETS 50,802,276 - 50,802,276
LIABILITIES
Redemption payable 6,624,412 - 6,624,412
Management and administration fees payable 253,143 - 253,143
Director’s fees payable 7 28,000 - 28,000
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 165,475 - 165,475
TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,071,030 - 7,071,030

Within After

12 months 12 months Total
As at 31 December 2020 (SR) (SR) SR
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 862,537 - 862,537
Financial assets at FVTPL 19,436,713 - 19,436,713
Other receivables 4,603 - 4,603
TOTAL ASSETS 20,303,853 - 20,303,853
LIABILITIES
Management and administration fees payable 109,594 - 109,594
Director’s fees payable 32,712 - 32,712
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 78,367 - 78,367
TOTAL LIABILITIES 220,673 - 220,673
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Alpha Saudi Equity Fund
(Managed by Alpha Capital Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
31 December 2021

9 CONTINGENCIES

There are no contingencies as at the reporting date.

10 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the presentation in the current year.
11 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There were no events subsequent to the reporting date which require adjustments of or disclosure in the financial
statements or notes thereto.
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